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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of ACI Formulations Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consoclidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) as well as the separate financial statements of AC| Formulations Limited
(the “Company"), which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as
at 30 June 2019, and the consclidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and
consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give true and fair
view of the consclidated financial position of the Group and the separale financial position of the
Company as at 30 June 2019, and of its consclidated and separate financial performance and its
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenis section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the audit of financial statements are as under:
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Key audit area

Our responses

;"Carrylng value (CV) of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and its impairment

PPE includes the Group’s and the Company's
long term assets, which flow economic benefits
to the entities more than one year. PPE is
measured at cost or revaluation less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. The items of PPE excluding
under construction assets were revalued by a
professional valuer in 2015 on the basis of
applicable methods including market value
based method. The carrying value of PPE
represents significant portion of total assets,
which is amounting to Tk. 194.5 crore for the
Company and Tk. 194.6 crore for the Group at
the reporting date, In other words, for both the
' Company and the Group, approximately 31% of
| lotal assets are represented by PPE.

The carrying value of PPE is the function of
| depreciation charges on costrevaluated that
involved estimation. Therefore, it has been
considered as a significant area of auditor's
judgment and requires special attention. It is a
matter to consider that the carrying value of
FPE may be higher than the recoverable
amount and the impairment charges therson
may not have been recognised.

\We have tested the design and ‘operating
effectiveness of key controls over PPE. Our audit
procedures included, among others, considering
the impairment risk of the assets.

Followings are our audit procedures on the
carrying value and impairment risk of PPE:

* Reviewing basis of  recognition,
measurement and valuation of assets;

+ (Observing procedures  of  assets
acquisition, depreciation and disposal;

« Checking ownership of the major assets:

» Checking the Capital-Work-in-Progress
{(CWIP) and its transfer to PPE as well as
capital expenditure commitment;

¢ Performing due physical asset verification
on sample basis at the year-end;

+ Checking estimated rates of depreciation
being used and assessed its fairness:

* Discussing with the management about
the fair value of the assets and assessing
independently whether  the Ccv
approximates the fair wvalue at the
reporting date;

« Evaluating the Group's assumptions in
relation to recoverable amounts of the
major PPE to identify if there is any
requirement of recognition of impairment;
and

« Finally, assessing the appropriateness |
and presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any issues with
regard to CV of PPE and any indicators that
would tngger impairment,

Refer to the note no. 8 and 8{a) to the financial statements
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Inventory valuation

Al year end the Company reported inventory of
Tk. 163 crore and the Group, as a whalg,
reported inventory of Tk. 164 crore held in
depots, central warehouse and factories.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realizable value.

The Group provides provision for obsolescence
or slow-moving based on age analysis of
inventories. This methodology relies  upon
assumptions made in determining appropriate
provisioning amount to inventory balances,
Therefore, it has been considered as key area
of auditor's judgment and, thereby requiring
special attention.

We obtained a detailed understanding and
evaluated the design and implementation of
controls that the Group has established in
relation to inventory valuation.

We obtained assurance over the
appropriateness of management's assumptions
applied in calculating the value of inventory
provisions.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the
inventory comprise the followings:

» Evaluating the design and implementation
of key inventory controls operating across
the Group including Distribution Centres,
Warehouses and Branches on sample

basis;
s Aftending inventory counts at the year-
end and reconciling the results of

counting to the inventory listings to test
the completeness of data;

s Critically assessing the Group's inventory
provisioning  policy, with  specific
consideration given to aged inventory as
well as stock turnover calculations,
including the impact of seasonality:

« Comparing the net realizable value,
obtained through a detailed review of
sales subsequent to the year-end, to the
cost price of inventories and comparing to
the associated provision 1o assess
whether  inventory  provisions  are
complete; and

» Reviewing the historical accuracy of
inventory provision and the level of
inventory write-offs during the year.

Qur procedures above did not identify any issues
with regard to inventory,

|__Riefer to the note no. 11 and 11{a) to the financial statements.




Hoda Vasi
Chowdhury & Co

At reporting date, the position of Loan
outstanding was Tk, 195.1 and Tk. 195.3 crore
for the Company and the Group respectively. In
other words, approximately 51% and 50% of
total liabilities are represented by loans for the
Company and Group respectively,

Evidently, the Company is using loan to operate
the business and also, to acquire non-current
assets, Loan, therefore, has been considered as
key audit area.

 Short-term loan and Bank overdraft (“Loan”)

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the operational effectivenass
of the Company's key controls over the loans.

Our audit procedures included, among others,
the followings:

* Understanding and reviewing the nature
or types of loans;

Reviewing the board meeting minutes on
arrangements of the loans;

Obtaining the repayment schedules, loan
statements and facility offer letters to
review terms, debt covenants, interest
rates and other conditions associated
with the loans;
Recalculating the interest
loans:

Checking the adjustments or repayments
of loans through bank statements as per
repayment schedule;

Observing whether there is any overdue
payment relevant to loans; and

Finally, assessing the appropriateness
and presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standards.

related to

Qur procedures above did not identify any issues
with regard to loans.

Refer to the note no. 20, 21 and 21(a) to the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

At year end the Company reported total revenue
of Tk. 402 crore and the Group, as a whaole,
reported total revenue of Tk, 405 crore.

| Revenue is recognised when the performance

obligation is satisfied by transferring the goods
| or services to a customer, either at a point in
time or over time, Goods or services are
“transferred” when the customer obtains control
of it. It is a matter of concern that revenue may
' be misstated due to recognition of sales

transaction before performance obligation being
| satisfied.

Furthermore, revenue is measured at net of
trade discounts, returns and allowances. Within
a number of the Group's markets, the estimation

We have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the
followings:

« Segregation of duties in invoice creation
and modification:

Approved price list and specified terms of
trade in place;
Authorization
customers,;
Timing of revenue recognition; and

Calculation of discounts.

of credit terms to
L]

Our substantive procedures in relation to the
revenue recognition comprises the followings:

» Observing and evaluating whether proper
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of discount recognised based on sales made |
during the year is material and considered to be |
complex and judgmental, Therefore, there is a |
matter of consideration that revenue may be
misstated as a result of faulty estimations over
discounts.

segregation of duties put in place;

= Examining samples of sales orders for
evidence of proper credit approval by the
appropriate  persennel concerned and
application controls for credit limits;

* Comparing prices and terms on samples
of sales invoices to the authorized price
list and terms of ftrade and also,
examining application contrals  for
authorized prices and terms;

= Obtaining supporting documentation for
sales transactions recorded either side of
year end as well as credit notes issued
after the year end date to determine
whether revenue was recognised in the
correct period;

* Assessing the appropriateness of the
Group's revenue recognition accounting
policies, including those relating to
discounts by comparison with applicable
accounting standard,

¢ Testing the effectiveness of the Group's
controls over the calculation of discounts
and appropriate timing of revenue
recognition;

+ Critically assessing manual journals
made to revenue to identify unusual or
irregular items; and

« Finally, assessing the appropriateness
and presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standards,

Our testing did not identify any issues with
regard to revenue,

Refer to the note no. 26 and 26(a) to the financial statements.

| Negative operating cash flows

| At year end the C:::mr::r:—.w'{yr reported negative
operating cash flows amounting to Tk. 27.5
crore and the Group, as a whole, reported
negative operating cash flows amounting to Tk.
26.9 crore,

The Company has been continuously
generating negative operating cash flows for
last three vyears. Furthermore, negative
operating cash flow has significantly increased
by 123% and 95% at the Company and the
| Group level respectively, for the accounting year

\We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the operational effectiveness
of the Company's key controls over the
statement of cash flows,

Our audit procedures included, among others,
the followings:

» Analyzing the cash operating cycle;

= Analyzing the operating profitability of the
Company and the Group;

= Observing and evaluating whether proper
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'ended 30 June 2019 compared to the last segregation of duties put in place;
accounting year ended 30 June 2018 s Testing the effectiveness of the Group's
Therefore, it has been considered as key audit controls over the cash and bank
area. receipts/payments process;

* FReviewing the delegated list of authority
for cash payments;

+ Observing the cheques authorization
process and also, observing the
procedure of postings to cash payments
journal and payable accounts with |
approval; .

* Inspecting relevant documentation for |
evidence of approval by authorized
personnel; '

* FReviewing reconciliation of funds
transfers and cheques issued with
postings to cash payments journal and
payable accounts;

« Observing supplier statements reconciled
to payable accounts and monthly bank
reconciliations of bank statements to
ledger account;

+ Reviewing agreement of monthly cash
payments journal to general ledger
posting and payable accounts reconciled
to general ledger control account;

* Reviewing list of cash receipts reconciled
with pasting to customer accounts; and

» Tracing cash receipts from listing to cash
receipts journal for proper classification.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard
| to negative operating cash flows.

Refer to the operating activities of the Statement of cash flows and note no. 16.3 and 16.3(a)
of the financial statements.

Other Matter

The Group comprises the parent, AC| Formulations Limited, and its subsidiary namely Neem
Laboratories (Pvt) Ltd. The financial statements of subsidiary have been audited by Shiraz Khan
Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants. The auditor of subsidiary has expressed an unmodified
opinion on the financial statements on 30 June 2019.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other infarmation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and
separate financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities
and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control
as management delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and
separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar,

In preparing the consclidated and separale financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate
financial statements,
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As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated and separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's and the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consoclidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated and separate
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and
separate financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group and the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and
relevant notifications issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report
that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof:

b} in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group
and the Company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books:

¢} the consolidated and the separate statements of financial position and statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income along with the annexed notes 1 to 38 dealt with by the
report are in agreement with the books of account, and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Group's and the Company's business,

]

Dhaka, 24 0CT 2019 Hdda%asi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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ACI Formulations Limited
Statement of financial position

In Taka Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Assets
Property, plant and equipment B 1,944 656 528 1,793,602,725
Investments g 39,742 772 37,086,077
Non-current assets 1,984,385 300 1,830,598 ,802
Inventaries 11 1,625 5682 BB3 1,610,648,618
Trade receivables 12 1,713,472 029 1,350,154,816
Other receivables 13 41,728 563 27,351,264
Inter-company receivables 14 22,983 074 516,615,689
Advances, deposits and prepayments 15 646 689 537 498,329,534
Cash and cash equivalents 16 297,708,034 262,039 838
Current assets 4,348 163 920 4,265 139,758
Total assets 6,332,563, 220 5,085,738,560
Equity
Share Capital 17 450,000,000 450,000,000
Revaluation reserve 1,136,392 931 1,136,392 831
Retained earnings 886,693,726 915,939,875
Total equity 2,473,286 657 2,502,332,806
Liabilities
Employee benefits 18 43,494,778 39179,275
Deferred tax liabilities 19 49 417 522 59 510,615
Non-current liabilities 92,912,298 98,689,890
Bank overdrafts 20 128,758 666 163,497,501
Loans and borrowings 21 1,822,161,341 2,73B,695818
Trade payables 22 80,050,954 126,995,056
Other payables 23 248,013,100 196 583,593
Inter-company payables 24 1,146 287 405 -
Provision for tax 25 332,092 799 268,942,996
Current liabilities 3,766,364 265 3,494 715,864
Total liabilities 3,859,276 563 3,593,405, 754
Total equity and liabilities 6,332,563,220 6,095 738,560
Net asset value (NAV) per share 54.96 5561

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

naging Director

ohaka, L4 0CT 208

Director

/

Company Secretary!

Ag per our report of same date

V Héda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

|~



Hoda Vasi
Chowdhury & Co

ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended  For the year ended

In Taka MNote 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Revenue 28 4,025 285890 4,127 465,958
Cost of sales 27 (2,814 616,591) (3,100,867 609)
Gross profit 1,210,669,299 1,026,498,349
Other income 28 5,109,758 6,594 472
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 28 (798 554 43B) (B0 17T 273)
Operating profit 415,824,619 342,915,548
Finance costs, net 30 (224,760,871) (171,020,345)
Profit before contribution to WPPF 191,083,748 171,885 203
Cantribution to WPPF (9,553,187) {8,594 760)
Profit before tax 181,510,561 163,300,443
Income tax expense kY|

Current tax (63,149.803) (40,544 ,338)

Deferred tax incomelexpense) 10,093,083 {7,721,122)

(53,056,710} (48,265 458)

Profit after tax 128,453 851 115,034 985
Other comprehensive income 5 =
Total comprehensive income 128 453 851 115,034 985
Earnings per share 321
Basic earnings per share 2.85 2.56

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statemants,

andging Director

Dhaka, 24 0CT 2019

Director

L.

| Eompany Secretary

4 per cur report of same date

\ Ho#la Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of cash flows
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For the year ended  For the year ended

in Taka Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers and others 3,834,301 495 4,092,179,386
Cash paid to suppliers and employees I3.488,739,647) {3.916,283,729)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 145 561,851 175,885 657
Faid to WFPPF (8,594 7860) {18,775,022)
Interest paid (254 474 644) (160,275,500)
Income tax paid (157,359,784) (120,057, 281)
420,439, 188) 299,107 ,803)
Met cash (used in)/from operating activities” 16.3 (274 877,337 (123,222 148)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (218,972,241) (63.755,938)
Sale proceed from praperly, plant and equipment - 432 800
Investment (2,645,695) 130.028,7590)
Net cash {used inffrom investing activities 1221,619,536) (93,351,826)
Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts received/{paid) 1,639,920,020 (533,376,884)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings {916,534, 477) B62 B20.412
Dividends paid {156,649,902) (67,198,737)
Net cash {used in)from financing activities 566.735.641 262,244,791
MNet increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 70,238,768 45,670,719
Opening cash and cash equivalents 98 542 337 52510777
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 168,263 360,841
Cash and cash equivalents at repnrting date 168,949,368 gE 642 337
Closing balance represents
Cash and cash equivalents 18 297,708,034 262,039,638
Bank overdraft 20 (128,758 668) {183,407 ,501)
168,949 3568 88,542 337
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) {6.11) {2.74)

* See Mote 16.3 for reconciliation of net operating cash flow,

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of financial position

In Taka Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Assets

Property, plant and eqguipment 8{a) 1,946,404 129 1,795,746 344
Investments 9{a) 35,794 438 33,147,743
Intangible assets 10 5,147,752 5,147,792
Mon-current assets 1,967,346,359 1,834 041 879
Inventories 11{a) 1,641,860,723 1,629,233 566
Trade receivables 12(a) 1,718,346,712 1,360,567 380
Other receivables 13 41,673,512 26,004,265
Inter-company receivable 14{a) 3,658 354 480,417 631
Advances, depasits and prepayments 15(a) 649,979 459 500,830,409
Cash and cash equivalents 16(a) 208,654,227 262,105,266
Current assets 4354173017 4,269,158,537
Total assets 6,341,519,376 §,103,200,416
Equity

Share Capital 17 450,000,000 450,000,000
Revaluation reserve 1,136,382, 931 1,136,392 831
Retained eamings 881,850,264 508,028,248
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 2,468,243 195 2495422 170
Non controlling interest (127,415) {165,520)
Total equity 2.468,115,780 2,495 256 659
Liabilities

Employee benefits 18 43,494 776 39,179,275
Deferred tax liabilities 49,120,473 58,526,713
Non-current liabilities 92,615,249 97,705,988
Bank overdrafis 20 128,758 666 163,497 501
Loans and borrowings 21{a) 1,625 021,489 2,746,378 692
Trade payables 22{a) 97,424,470 132,432 664
Other payables 23(a) 249 643,994 197,588,908
Inter-company payables 24 1,146,287 405 -
Provision for tax 25(a) 333,652,313 270,340,004

Current liabilities

3,780,788,347

3,510,237 769

Total liabilities

3,873,403,596

3,607 843,757

Total equity and liahilities

§,341,515,376

6,103,200,416

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 54.85 55.45
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Mafaging Director "~ Director ICompany Secretary

24 0CT 209

Dhaka,

As per our report of same dale
/
y <
4 || hans

| Holla Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Charterad Accountants



ACI Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
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For the year ended  For the year ended

in Taka Note 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Revenue 26(a) 4,052,370,211 4,153,270,513
Cost of sales 27(a) {2,837,236,215) (3,122 157,333}
Gross profit 1,215,133,996 1,031,113,180
Other income 28 5,108,758 6,594 472
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 29(a) (801,252,931 (691,303,121}
Cperating profit 418,680,623 346 404 531
Finance costs, net 30(@) {225,072 447) (171,540,849}
Profit before contribution to WPPF 193,818,376 174,863,662
Contributiaon to WPPF (9,653,187) (8,594 760)
Profit before tax 184,265,189 166,268,922
Income tax expense: 3ia)
Current tax (63,312,309) (41,662 554)
Defarred tax income/{expensea) 9406 241 {7,324 782)
(53,806 ,068) (48,587 336)
Profit after tax 130,359,121 117,281,586
Other comprehensive income £ =
Total comprehensive income 130,359,121 117,281 586
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 130,321,018 117,236,654
Mon-controlling interest 38,105 44,932
130,358,121 117,261,586
Earnings per share 32.11a)
Basic earnings per share 2.80 2.61
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements,
ing Director Cirector bbmpani_.r Secretary

Dheka, 24 0CT 2019
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s per our report of same date

B2

Hoda Wasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants
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ACI Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Forthe year ended  For the year ended

iIn Taka Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 3,666,923, 700 4.120,241,219
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {3,514,802,6843) {3,958.204,168)
Cash {used in)/generated from operating activities 152,120,857 162,037,051
Payment for WPPF (8,594 760) (18,775,022)
Interest paid {254,786,221) (160,796,004)
Income tax paid {157,913 752) (120,205,040)
(421,294 733) (299,776,066)
MNet cash (used in)/ffrom operating activities® 16.3(a) (269173 B76) (137.,739,015)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (218,972.641) {63,755,835)
Sale proceed from property, plant and equipment - 432,800
Investrment {2.646,695) (30,028.780)
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities {221,619,538) i93,351,925)
Cash flows from financing activities
Inter-company debts received/(paid) 1,639,920,020 (533,376 B84)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings (921,357,193) 865,014,138
Dividends paid (156,649 902) (67,198,731
Net cash (used in)/from financing activifies 561,912,925 264 438,517
Met increasefidecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 71,119,513 33,347 577
Cpening Cash and cash equivalents 98,607,785 64 698,367
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 168,263 360,641
Closing cash and cash equivalents at reporting date 169,895 561 98 607,785
Closing balance represents
Cash and cash equivalents 18({a) 298,654,227 262,105,286
Bank overdraft 20 (128,758 666) (163,497,501)
169,895,561 98,607 785
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFP3S) (5.98) (3.08)

* See Mote 16.3{a) for reconciliation of net operating cash flow.

The annexed noles 1 lo 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACI Formulations Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as al and for the year ended 30 June 2019

Reporting entity
Company profila

ACI Formulations Limited (the "Company”} is a company incarporated in Bangladesh. It was incorparaled as a privale limited
company on 29 Oclober 1995 and converled lo a publc imiled company on 4 May 2005, The Company was listed with beth
Dhaka Slock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chiftagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE} on 30 October 2008, The registered office
of the Company is at 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area. Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh, The Company went into commercial operations on
1 July 1988, Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (ACI Limiled) incorporated in Bangladesh is the immediale as well as
ultimale parent of the Company, The consolidated financial statements of tha Company as at and for the year endad 30 June
2018 comprise the Companys and its subsidiaries (fogethar referred to as the "Group” and individuatly as “Group anlities™)
interesl in conlrolled entities.

Nature of business
The principal aclivitizs of the Company are manufacluring and markeling of a number of agrochemical and consumer products

= Agrochemical products {Crop Care & Public Health) are directly marketed by the Company with the use of depot facilities of
ACT Limitad

= Some preducts of 5. C, Johnson & Son, Inc.. are manufaciured by the Campany under coniracl which is distributed by ACI
Limited.

* Paint products are manufactured and marketed by the Company under license from Akzo Mobsl NV, and distributed with
legislics suppard from ACI Limited,

Description of subsidiary

The Company acquired 98% shares of Neem Laboratones (Pl Lid. The initial effective dale of acquisition was 28 February
2014, Meem Labaratones (Pvl) Lid is engaged in manufaciuring and markeling of herbal producis in 2 small scale.

Basis of accounting

Statement of compliance

The separale financial siatements as well a5 consolidated financial stalemenis have been prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standards (1A5s), Inlernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), (BASs & BFRSs for the year
ended 30 June 2018), the Companies Act 1984, the Securilies and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and
requiations.

Date of authorisation

The audited consolidated financial statements as well as separate linancial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 were
autharised by the Board of Directors on 24 Colaber 2019 for publication

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been propared an going cancem basis under the historical cost basis excep for
certain assels. which are slated ailter al revalued amount or fair marke! value as explained in the accompanying nates.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presentad in Bangladesh Taka (TakaTk/BOT), which is the functional and presentation currency
of the Group. The amaounts in these financial slatements have been rounded off o the neares! Taka, unless otherwise indicated.
In seme instances the tolal may not match with 1he sum of mdividual balance due 1o rounding off.

Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these separale and consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments. eslimates and
assumptions lhat aflect the application of accounting policies and the reported amaunl of assels, liabilities, income and
enpenses. Aclual resulls may differ from these estimales.

Estimatas and underlying assumplions are reviewed an an ongaing basis. Revision to estimales are recognised prospeclively,

Assumplions and estimation uncertaintics

Information aboul assumptions and estimalion uncerlainties hal have a significant risk of resulling in a material adjusiment for
the year ended 30 June 2019 5 included in the following noelas:

Mole - 8 & Bla) Property. plant and eguipment
Note -11 & 11(z) Inwentarics

MNote - 12 & 12(a) Trade receivables

Nole - 13 Ofber raceivables

Mole - 14 & 14(a) Inter-company receivables
Mate - 18 Employae banelils

Mote - 10 Deferred 1ax labililies

Mote - 26 & 25(a) Provision for [ax

Mote - 34 Commitment and contingancias
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Fair value

When measuring the fair value of an assat or a liability, the Group uses markel observable data as far as possible. Fair values
are categorised into different leveals in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation fechnigues as follows:

= Level 1; quoted prices (unadjusled) in active markeis for idenfical assets or liabilities.

+  Level 2 inputs olher than quoted prices included in Level 1 Ihat are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {ie. as
prices) ar indirectly (Le. derived lrom prices),

= Lewvel 3: inputs for the assel or liabilily that are not based on chaervable market data {unobservable inpuls).

If the inputs used o measure the fair valuee of an asset or 3 iability are categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is caloegorised In its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest leval inpul
that is significant ta the enfire measuremant,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value higrarchy at the end of the reporfing periad during which the
change has occurred.

Reporting period

The financial period of the Company covers one year fram 1 July 2018 10 30 June 2019 and is being followed cansisiently.

Signiflcant accounting policies
The Graup has consistenily applied the fallowing zcoounting policies 1o all perieds presented in these financial statements.

St oul below is an index of the significant accounfing policies, the details of which are available an the current and following
pages:

(a) Current versus non-current classification
b} Ofiseting

(ch Basis of consolidation

(d) Revenue from confract with customers
(2] Foreign currency lransactions

(t  Employee benefits

(g} Firance income and finance cosls
(h)  Income tax

iy Investment

{1y Inveniones

{k} Property, plant and aquipmeant

(I} Intangible assets

(m) Financial instruments

(n)  Share capital

(@) Impairment

(p) Operabing leases

(a) Prowisions

(ry  Going concern

(5} Contingencies

(] Statemant of cash flows

(u) Earnings per share (EPS)

[v] Events after the reporting pericd
[w) Dividends

{x) Materiality and aggregation

[¥) Application of new standards

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statemant of financial position based on curentnan-current classification. An asset
is current when it is:

it expected to be realised In normal oparating cvcle, or

iy due to be realised within twelve months afier the reparting period, or

iy held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

iv) used or exchanged to seltle a liability within twelve months after the reporting periad.

All other assels are classified 85 non-current.
A liability is currant when it is.

i} expected fo be settled in normal operaling cycle, ar

i} due to be seftlied within twelve months after the reporting periad, ar

ity held primarily for the purpese of trading, or

iv) there is no uncondifional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve maonths after the reporing
pariod,

The Group classifies all othar liabililies as non-current,
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(b) Offsetting

{c

(d

The Group repors separately bath assels and liabilities, and income and expenses, unless required by an applicable accounting
slandard or offsefting reflects the substance of the transaclion and such offsefing is permittied by applicable accounting
standard.

Cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the activities of the cusiomer rather than those
aof the entity and cash receipts and payments for fems in which the lumnover is quick, the amounts are large, and the malurities
are short are presented nel in the slatement of cash flows,

Basis of consolidation

i}y Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Carmpany, Contral exisis when the Company hag the power to govern the financial
and operaling policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from ils aclivities. In assessing confrol, potential voting rights
presentlly exercisable are taken into account, The financial statements of subsidiaries have been included in the
consolidaled fingncial statements from the date that confrel commences until the date that it ceases. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necassary to align them with the policies adopled by the Company.

(i} Mon-controlling Inferests

Mon-controlling inferest (NCI) is the egquity interest in a subsidiary nol attributable to ACI Formulations Limited, NG iz
measurad at subsidiaries' proporlianale share of identifiable net assets.

(iii) Loss of control

Wihen the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabililies of the
subeidiary, any refaled NCI and olher compaonents of the equily at thair camrying amount at the date when contral is losl. Any
resulling gain ar foss is recoanised in the profit or loss, Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measurad at fair
value when conirol is lost

{ivy Transaclions efimingted on consclidation

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arsing from intra-group transactions are
eliminated In preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue fram contract with customers

Revenue s measured based on the consideraticon specified in a eonfract with 2 customer. The Group recognises revenue when it
Iransfers centrol over a good or service fo a cuslomer, The following lable provides information about the nature and timing of
ihi satisfaction of pedormance obligations in confracls wilth customers:

Type of praduct or service

Revenue recognition under IFRS 15

Revenue recognition under IAS 18

Sale of goods ar senvices

Revenua s recocgnized when or as a
periormance obligation & satisfied by
transferring @ good or service o a
customer, eithar at a peinl in time or
over time. A good or service s
‘fransferred’” when or as the customer)
chiains contrel of it. Customers obtain
confrod of goods at paint of delivery o)
over fime,

The enfity assesses whether it transfers
contral over time by following prescribed
criteria  for  safisfyving  performance
chlgation, If none of the criteria is mel
lhan the entity recognizes revenue at
point of time at which it transfers control
of the goods to the customer.

Revenue is measured net of value
added tax, trada discount, returns and
allowances (f any). In case of cash
delivery, revenue is recognised when
delivery is made and cash is received by

the: Group.

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
1o the customers, recovery of the consideration
is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estmated reliably, there
is no confinuing involyvement with the goods, and
1he amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured nat of value added tax,
frade discount, returns and allowances (if any).
In case of cash delivery, revenue is recognised
when delivery is made and cash is received by
the Group.

Revenue from rendering of services s
recogmnised in proportion to the stage of
completion of the lransaction at the repaorting
dale. The stage of completion i assessed based
an surveys of waork perfarmed.

When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent
rather than as the principal in & transaction, the
revenue is recognised in the net amount of
cammission earned by the Group.

{e) Fareign currency transactions

The financial stalements are prepared in BOT, which is the Campany's funclional currency. Transactions in forelgn currencies
are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of such transaclions. Monetary assels and liabiliies in
foreign currencies at the date of financial position are translated into BOT at the exchange rate prevailing ai that date, with
foreign currency differences being recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary ilems that are measured in terms
of historical coslin a foreign currency are translated using the exchangs rate at the date of ransaction.
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Employee benefits
(i} Shor-farm emplayee benefils

Short-lerm employee benefils are expensed as the relaled service is pravided, A ligbility is recognised for the amaunt
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or construclive obligation 1o pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated raliably.

(il Definad contnbulion plans (provident fund)

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme where emplayees contribute 8% of their basic salary with equal
contribution by the Campany. The provident fund is being considered as defined conlibution plan being managed by a
Board of Trustees.

The Company recognises contribution to defined conbribution plan as an expense when an employves has rendered related
sonvices in exchange for such contribution. Prepaid contributions are rocognised as an assel to the exient that a cash refund
ar a reduction in future payments is available.

{iily Defned beneft plans (gratuiy)

The Company operates an unfunded gratuily scheme, prowvision in respect of which is made annually covaring all its
permanant aligible employees. The Employees' Gratuity Fund is being considered as defined benefit plan,

Defined benefii plan is a post-employment benefil plan under which amounts to be paid as retirement benefils are
determined by refarence 1o employess’ eamings and/for year of services. The rale used lo discount post employment benefit
abligations is determined by reference to the rate staled in the actuarial report. Actuarial valuation of gratuity schema has
been made as an 30 June 2018 by independent actuarial valuer to assess the adequacy of the liabiliies provided for the
schemes

i) Workers' Prafit Participabion Fund (WEEF)

Tha Company operates funds for workers as "Workers' Profil Participation Fund' and 5% of the profit before charging such
expensa have been transferred ta this fund as per section 234 of the Labour Act 2006 (amended in 2013).

Finance income and finance costs

The Group's finance incomsa and finance costs include:

= inferest income;

* interest expense,

Interesl income or expense is recognised uging the effective interest method.
Income tax

Income tax expense comprises curren and deferred lax. Il is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates 1o
items recognised direclly in aquity or in OCI {Other Comprehansive Income),

(i} Curranl fax

Current fax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the 1axable income or loss for the year and any adjusiment
1o tax payable ar receivable in respect of previous years. The amaunt of current tax payable is (he bost estimate of the fax
amount expected to be paid hat reflects uncertainty related to income Lax, if any. Current 1ax assets and liabilities are offsel
only if cerlain criteria are mel. It is measured using fax rates enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
applicable 1ax rates for the Company is currantly 25%

(it} Deforred tax

Deferred tax assat or liability Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liahilities for financial reporting purposes and fhe amaunts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is nol recognised far;

= temperary differences on the inilial recognition of assefs or labiliies in a fransaction that is nol @ business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor laxable profil or loss.

- laxable temparary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

- lemporary difference related to investments in subsidiaries 1o the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the iemporary differences and it is probable that they will.

Daferred lax assels are recognised for unused tax osses, unusad tax credils and deductible temparary differences 1o the
exlent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Defarred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 1o the extent that it is no langer probable that the related tax benefil will be
realised: such reductions are reversed when fhe prabability of future taxable profits improve,

Investment

In separale financial statements of the Company, investment in subsidiaries has been carried at cost as per |AS 27: Separate
Financial Staterments. All olher invesiments have been calegorised in accorance with IFRS 8 (IAS 39 for the year ended 30 June
2018).

Investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for as per IFRS 10; Consolideled Financial Statements. The Investment is
eliminated in full against the equity of acquired subsidiary, which is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition as per IFRS
3 Business Combinations.
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Inventories

Inventories excepl malarials in transit are measured al the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventonies is based
on the weighted average method, and includes expendilure incurred in acquiring the inveniorias, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing locaticn and condition. In the casa of manufaciured inventeres and
wark-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production averheads based on normal operation capacity.

Allowance for invantary is periodically recegnised mainly on ihe basis of failure in quality contral tesfing, net realisable value, non
compliance tesling, near o expiry elc. Mel realisable value is the estimatad selling price in the ordinary course of businass, less
the estimatad costs of completion and selling expanses.

Matarial in transil represents the cost incurred up o the date of the statement of financial position for the items that were not
received Ll Lo the dale of the statement of finansial pasilion. lnvenlary lossas and abnormal losses are recognised as expenses,

Property, plant and equipment
(i} Recogmibion and measuremeant

llems of property, plant and equipment are measured al cosl or revaluation less accumulaled depreciation and any
accurnulaled impairment losses. The ilems of property, plant and equipment were revalued in the year 2004, 2010 and
2015 by a firm of professional valuers an the basis of applicable methods including market value mefhod, premise on the
accompanying narrative infarmation and valuation methodology. Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for
acquisilion andior canstruction af iterms of property, plant and equipment that were not ready for use at the end of 30 June
2019 and these are stated at cost.

Cost includes axpenditure thal is directly attributable to the acquisition of asset, The cost of self constructed asset includes
the cost of material and direct labour, any other costs directly attibutable o bringing the assels 10 the working condilion for
their intended usa.

(il}  Subseguen! cosls

The cost of replacement or upgradation of an ilem of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the itemn if it is probable that the fulure economic benefits embod:ed within the pan will Tiow to the Group and its cosl can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expense are charged to income statement as incurred.

i) Deprecialion

All lems of property, plant and equipment have been dapreciated on siraight line basis over the estimated useful life of each
item of property, plant and equipment. Depreclation on additions is charged in full fram the month of acquisition and no
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal, Depreciaticn is charged al the rates varying from 2.5% o 20% depending
on the estimated wseful lives of assets. No depreciation is charged for land and capital work in progress, as land has
unlimited wseful life and CWIP has not yvet been placed in service,

The revalued items of propeny. plant and equipment are depracialed based on their revalued amount at the date of
revalualicn over thair remaining estimated uselul lives.

The estimated useful lives of initially recognised property, plant and equipmant are as follows:

In Yoar 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Building 40 40
Plant and machinery 10 10
Equipment and machinery 5-10 510
Electrical and olher office appliances 5-10 5-10
Furniture and fixlura 10 10
Motor vehicles 5 5

Depreciation methods, useful ives and residual values are reviewed al each raporting dala and adijusted if appropriate, No
revision in respect of items af property, plant and equipment was done for the year ended 30 June 2019,

(iv) Capiaiisalion of borrowing costs

Borrawing costs that are direcily aftributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of a qualifying assel are includad
in tha cost of ihal asset as per 145 23; Borrowing cost. The capitalisation rale is the weighted average of the boriowing costs
of Group's borowings for this purpose and the capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the asset is ready for
intended use.

(v} Impaimment

The carrying amount of the non-financial assels, ather than inventories and deferred tax assels (considered as disclosed
saparately under respective accounting standards), are reviewed at each reporting date to delermine whathar there iz any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the agset's recoverable amount is estimated.

Howewver, no such canditions that might be suggestive of a heightened risk of impairment of assels existed af the reparting
date.
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Retremeant and disposals

An assel is derecognised on disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from 15 use and subsequen
disposal. Gains or losses arising fram the retirement or disposal of an asset is delarmined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the assef and is recognised as gain of loss from disposal of asset in profit or
Inss. When revalued assets are disposed of, the amounts included in tha revaluation surplus are fransferred to retained
samings.

Intanglble assets

Intangible assets consisl of goodwill arsing on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less aceumulated impairment
IB55ES,

Financial instruments

MNon-derivative financial instruments comprise af invesiments in ghares and lerm depeosit, trade receivable, inler-company
receivable, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents. trade payables, inter-company payables, other payables. bank
ovardrafi, share capital and interest-hearing borrowings.

i

(i}

[iri)

Financial assels

The Group initially recagnises receivables and depasits issued on the date when they originate. All other financizl assets are
initially recognised on 1he trade date, when fhe enfity becomes a party 1o the confractual provisions of the instrumanl.

The Group derecognises a financial assef when fhe contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or il fransfers
lhe rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a fransaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
awnership of the financial asset are fransferred, or it neither transfers nor retaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of
awnership and does nol retain contral aver the fransferred assel

The Group's financial assets comprise frade receivable, intercompany receivable, ather receivables, refundable deposits
and cash and cash eguivalents,

Trade, inter-company and athar receivables

Trade, inter-company and alher recaivables are initizlly recognised at the transaction price. These assets are subsequently
measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for impairment loss of receivables using
expecled credit loss model.

Cash and cash equivalants

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash balances and all call deposits with original maturities of three months or less
Bank cverdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the stalement of cash fows,

Investmant in ferm daposit

The Group has the positive inlent and ability to hold 1erm deposit 1o collect conlractual cash flows, and as such financial
assels are classified as amorlised cost (original classification under 1AS 39 was held to maturity).

Financial abilities

The Group initiglly recegnises financial liabilities on fhe transaction date at which the Group becomes a pany to the
contractual provisions of the liability. The Group recognises such financial liability when ils contraciual obligations arising
from past events are certain and the settlemant af which is expecied to result in an outflow fram the enfily of resources
embodying economic benefils,

The Group derecognises a financial liability when i1s eantractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.
The Group's financial liabiliies comprise trade and olher payables and interest - bearing borrowings.

The Group recognises such financial liabilly when iis contractuzl obligations arising from past evenls are cartain and Lhe
saftlemant af which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resaurces embodying economic benefits.

Cffsething & financial assst and & fingncial iability

Financial assels and financial abilities are offsel and Lhe nel amount presented in the statement of financial pasition when,
and cnly when, fhe Group has a legally enforceable right to offsel the amaunts and intends either to setile them on a nat
basis or to realise (he asset and settle the liability simultaneousty.

{n) Share capital

Incremnental costs directly aliributable to the issue of ordinary shares, nel of any tax effects, are recognised as a deduclion from
equity, Inceme tax relating to transaction cosls af an equily transaction are accounted for in accordance with 1AS 120 Income
Taxes.
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Impairment
i) Financial as5els

Financial assets are assessed al each reporing dabe to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- defaull or delinguency by a deblor;

- restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would nof consider olherwise,
- indications that a debiar ar isswer will enter bankruptcy;

- adverse changes in the payment stalus of bormowers or issuers; ar

. observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a group of financial
ASSR1S,

Financial assets measured at amontised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assots at bolh an individual asset and a collective level. All
individually significant assets are individually assessed for impaimment. Those found nat 1o be impaired are then collestively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yel individually identified. Assets that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is caried oul by grouping lagelher assets with
similar risk charactaristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses histarical infermation on the liming of recoveries and the amaunt of loss
incurred, and makes an adjusiment if current economic and credit condifions are such ihal the actual losses are likely 1o be
greater or lesser than suggested by historical frends.

An impairment loss is caloulated using expecled credil loss model as prescribed in IFRS 9. Impairment lass is recognised in
profit ar loss and reflected In an allowance account. When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of
racovery of tha asset, the refevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subseguently decreases and the
dpcrease can be related objectively to an event sccurring after the impairment was recognised, then ithe previously
recognised impairment Ioss is revarsed through profit or loss.

(i) MNeon-financial assels

At each reporling date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets {other than biological casts.
inventories and deferred tax assets) 1o determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists,
then the assat's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment festing, assels are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of olher assets or CGUs (Cash Generating Linits).

The recaverable amount of an aszel or CGU is the greater of ils value in usa and its fair value less costs 1o sell, Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using 3 pre-tax discount rate that reflects
curren! market assessmeants of the ime value of maoney and the risks specific to the assef or CGLU.

An impairment loss is recegnisad in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset ar CGU exceeds ils recoverable amount.
Operating leases

Al leases olher than those that meet the definition of finance lease are lrealed as operating lease and are not recognised in the
statement of financial position, Paymenis made wnder aperaling leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss and olher
comprehensive ingome an a straight line basis ovar the term of 1he lease.

Provisions

& provision |2 recognised if, as & result of past evenl, the Group has a present legal or constrective obligation that can be
estimated reliably. and it is probable that an oulllow of econcmic benefits will be required fo sefile the abligation and a reliable
astimala can be made of the amount of the obfigation. Provisions are reviewed al the end of each reporting penod and adjusted
fo reflect the curront best estimate. If it is probable that an outflow of resaurces embodying econamic benefits are reguired 1o
settle the abligation. the provision are reversed,

Going concern

The Group has adequale resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable fulure, For this reason the management
continues 1o adepl gelng concarn basis in preparing the financial slatements, The current resources of the Company provide
sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of ils existing business.

Contingencies
i} Cantingant liability

Canlingant liability is a possible chligation that arises fram past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by {he
Becurenca or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fuure events not wholly within the conirol of the entily; or a present
obligation that arises from past evenls bul is nol recognised because it is nol probable that an oulflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required lo setlle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannol be measured
wilh sufficient reliability,

The Group discloses contingent liability in the financial stalemeants, & provision is recognised in the period in which the
recognition criteria of provision is met
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(i} Confingant assa

Conlingent assel is a possible assat that arises from past evenls and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
ooourrence oF non-occurrence aof one of more uncerlain fulure events nal wholly within the conlral of the entity.

The Group doss not recognise contingant assel. Only when the realization of the related economic benafils ara visually
cenain should recegnition take place provided that it can be measured reliably because, ai that paint, the asset is no longer
conlingent.

Statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities are presenied under direct method as per 145 7: Stalement of cash flows.
Earnings per share {(EPS)

The Group presents basic earnings per share ([EPS) for its crdinary shares. basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loes
altributabla o ordinary shareholders of the Company § Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding
during the yaar,

Dilvled EPS is delarminad by adjusting prafit ar loss for the year attribulable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ardinary shares outstanding los the effects of all dilutive polential ardinary shares, if any. However, dilution of EPS is
not applicable far these financial statements as there was no potential dilutive crdinary shares during the year ended 30 Junea
2019,

Events after the reporting period

Ewents after the reparting period thal provide additional information about the Group's position at the reparting date or those that
indicate the gaing concermn assumplion is nol appropriate are reflected in tha financial stalements. Evenls after the reparting
pericd that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the noles when material,

Dividends

Final dividend distribution 1o the Group's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial siatemenls in the pericd in
which the dividends are appraved by the Group's shareholders at the Annual Gereral meeting, while interim dividend
distributions are recagnised in fhe pariod in which the dividends are declared and paid.

Mateariality and aggregation

Each material ciass of similar ilems is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar nature or function are
presented separately unless they are immaterial.

Application of new standards
i} Inifia! application of new standards

The Group initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 from 1 July 2018. These two new standards do not have a malerial effect on the
Group's financial slatemants.

a) IFRE 15 Revenue from Contracls with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprahensive framewark for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recogniged. 1L
replaced |AS 18 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts and relaled interpretations, Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
wien a customer obizins confrel of the goods or services.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 from 1 July 2018, However, there was no material impacl of adepting IFRS 15 an the Group's
financial stalemenis. Accordingly, comparative information is presented, as previously reported, under 145 18, 1AS 11 and
redaled interpretations.

For additicnal information about the Group's accounting palicies relating 1o revenue recognifion, see Male - 60.
by IFRS 8 Financial Instruments

IFRS 8 sets oul requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial [abilities and some contractsto buy ar sell
nen-financial items. This standard replaces 145 39 Financial Instruments: Recognilion and Measurement, There was no material
impact of adopling IFRS 9 on the Group's financial stalemant.

IFRS B contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured al amortised cost, FYOC! and FVTPL.
The classification of financial assets under IFRE 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is
managed and its contraciual cash flow characleristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous 1AS 39 categories of held 1o maturity,
leans and receivables and available for sale.

For additional information about the Group's accounting policies relating to financial instrumeants, see Nole - BM,
i} Standard issued but nat vel efechive

A new slandard and amendments to standards in effect from previous pericds are effective for annual penods beginning ar after
1 danuary 2018, with early application permitted, However, the Group is yel to apply the following new standard in preparing
Ihese financial statements,
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al IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 eliminales the current operating/financing lease dual accounting modal for leases. Instead, there is a single, on-
balance sheel accounting model, similar to current finance lease accounting. |ssued in January 2016, the new IFRS will
replace the exisling guidance in 145 17 Leasas. IFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting perinds baginning an ar after 1
January 2019. Early adoption is permitied if IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is also adoplad. The Growp is
to adopt IFRS 16 on its financial stalemants from the nexl financial year,

Operating segments
Basis for sagmentation

The Group has the followang four strategic business units, which are reporlable segments. These business unils offer different
products and servicas, and are managed separalely because they require different technology and marketing strategies. Faor
each of ine strategic business units. the Group's CED reviews inlernal managerment repars al least an quarierly basis

Reportable segmants Operations

Crop Care and Public Heallh (CC & PH) To manufacture and sell crop care and public health producls
Mesquito coil (M. Caoil) To manufaciure and sell mosquito coil products

Aerosol To manufaciure and sell agrosol and air freshener praducts

Paint To manufacture and sell paint products
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Investments
n Taka Mate 20 June 2019 30 June 2018
Invesiment in subsidiary a1 3,848,334 3,948,334
Invesiment in FOR a2 35,719,438 33,072,743
Imvestment in shares of ACI Molors Limited 75,000 75,000
30,742772 37086077
Investment in subsidiary
30 June 2019 30 Juna 2018
Face vaiue Called and
Murnber ped paid up Share-
af shares shars capifal per share halding Walues Value
Taka Taka 5 Taka Taka
Name of subsidiary
Neom Laboratonas (Pt Lid 4800 100 100 L 3,940,334 3,840,334
Taotal investment in subsidiary 3,548,324 3,943 334

Investment in FOR includes Taka 2,022 500 which is kept as lien against sarvica received fram Titag Gas Transmission and Distriputon Linited

Therefore, the Company has no intenbon to encash the said amount and recorded as lang tarm invaslment.

Consolidated Investments

In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Invasiment in FOR 35.719,438 Ja.0v2 43
Invasiment in shares of A Molors Limited 75,000 75,000

35,794,458 33,147,743

Intangibole assoets

In Taka

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Goodwll on acquisilion

Neem Lacoratores (Put) Lid 5147 T892 5147 792
5.147 792 5,147,792
Inventories
Iry Taka a0 Jure 2018 30 June 2018
Raw and packing matersals 523,197 2%9 643,307 254
Finished gooda 724 125316 324, TET 142
Goods in fransit 66,925 520 127,762 885
Other inventaries (engineering stores and diesel 25872 2067 27,321,255

Aliowance far show-méving inventary

(14,637,748 (12,529,529

1,625,5082,663  1,610,643,618

In wiew of innumerable ilems of inventories and diversified guaniities. inveniones are presanted group-wise

Consolidatad inventories

In Taka 30 June 2013 30 June 2018
Raw and packing maberials 33T 460,655 656G, 813,860
Finished goods 726,307,088 825485805
Goods in Lransit Gr.T04, Bag 132,506 744
Cher mveniores (enginganng slores and diesed) 258972297 27,321,256
Alowance for slow-maving mveniory (15,584 166) [12.893.919)
1,641 860,723 1,629,233 566

Trade receivables

30 June 20149 30 June 2018

Dues over Dues below

In Taka & manths & manths Taosal Taaal
Related party -

Other than related parties 454 475,806 1,401,908, 167

1,B596,368.973  1.461,218.715

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

1,856,288 873 1461218715
[142816.244)  (111,063,8589)

1.713472,029  1,350,154,816

In view of innumerable numbsr of debdors, it s not prackcable o disclose the amound of receivable against each &pecific deblars,

Consolidated trade raceivablos

30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Diues aver Duas bakow
In Taka B monlhs B menlhs Tatal Total
Related parlies

Oiher than related paries 454 479806 1405 783,350

1,861 263,656  1.471.631.279

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

1,861,263 656 1471631279
[142,318,944)  (111,063,880)

1.718,346,712  1.360,567,380
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Othor recevables represent receivable on accounts of promational xpense fo be reimbursed by Akzo Mobel and interest incoma from FOR.

Inter-company recelvables

In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
ACI Limited - 465,478 723
Noem Laborataries (Pl Lid 22,983,074 51,136,966

22883 074 316,815,688

This arises due to warking capital fimancing with ACI Limited and Meem Laborataries (Pl Lid

Consolidated intar-company receivables

in Taka a0 June 2018 30 Juna 2018
ACT Limited 3,658,384 490,417 631

3,658,384 490,417,631

Advances, deposiis and prepaymants

In Taka Nole 30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Advances:

Slafs 500,854 B22 834

Supplier and others 40,985,242 37,334,815

WAT current account 9,541 4585 22,876,978

Advance income tax 15.1 GE0.881.570 403 481 785

511,979,202 464,326 013

Deposits:

Securily deposils 11,704,373 9,064,423

Bank guaraniee margin 18,082 883 18,5588 560

20,747 266 28 263,953

Prepayments:

Prepaid expenses 4,913,060 5419528

4,913,068 5410528
Gd8, 659 537 458,320,534

Advance income tax

It Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Opening balance 403,491, 7HE 203 434 505
Addifions 157,368,784 120,057,281
Closing balance 60,861,570 403 451, 786
Consolidated advances, deposils and prepayments
In Taka 20 June 2015 30 June 2018
Advances:
Stafrs 590,894 G22,634
Supphers & others 41,892 536 38,157,308
VAT current account 10,408,055 23,170,306
Advance income lax 582 377 539 404,453, 787
G15,268 124 AGG 414,235
Deposits:
Security deposits 11,704,373 9,924 433
Bank guaraniee margn 18.022 593 18,558,560
20,797 266 28,583 993
Prepayments:
Frepaid expenses 4,913 069 5,832 181
4,813 069 5.832 181
G40 070 459 500,830,409
Cash and cash equivalents
In Taka Nate 30 June 2013 30 June 2018
Cash in hand 4,163,463 4,253,865
Callection in hand 16.1 118,215 BBS 157.098 527
Cash at bank 16.2 175,328 686 100,687 446
207 708,034 262,030 538

This repregents cash in hand at depots which was collected against cash sales and payment insiruments collecled against credit sales at the

ond of the reporting period
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Cash at bank
In Taka 20 June 2018 30 June 2018
Standarg Chartered Bank 24 535 934 18,838,170
The Hengkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 0,731,841 12,940, 545
AB Bank Limitad 58,125,348 32,680,873
Agrani Bank Limiled 1,158,203 2,752 592
Janata Bank Limiled 8,730,300 & 844 0B
Sonali Bank Limited 5,043,841 4 878 843
Bank Asia Limiled 1,640 2,780
BRALC Bank Limited 30,140,423 14 500,258
QOMWE Bank Limited 3,061,891 4 406,478
Commercial Bank of Ceyion PLC 42,1497 5,352,044
The City Bank Limited 20,000 -
Prime Bank Limited 22816013 -
Pubah Bank Limied 157,013 234
Dutch Bangla Bank Limiled 1,663,041 (620,484}

175,338,586 100 68T 445

Reconcillation of net oparating cash flow
In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Prafit atter lax 128,453 551 115,034,985
Adiustmant for
- Depreciation and amortizabion &7,842,104 53,008,544
- Bad debis and inventary lossi{recovery} 14 B84 75T [28.518,005)
- Mat finance cost 224 780 BT 171,020,245
- Tax exppnse 53,086,710 48 265,458
= Contricuton o WPPF 8 553 187 8 534,760

Changes i’
- Invenlaries
= Trade and othes recaivables

{17,041 BB3)
(409,547 560)

{225.077,013)
{17.782.217)

- Advances, deposit and prepayments 6,008,780 21,704 548
- Trade and other payables, employment benefils' 44,588 036 10,634,346
Cash generating from operating activities 145,561,851 176,885,857
Faid 1o WPPF (8,594, 760) (1B, 775,022)
Inlerasl paid (254,474 B44) (160,275 500
Income Lax paid (157 369,764) {120,067 281)

Met cash from operating activities

(274,B77,337)

(123,222 145)

Consolidated cash and cash equivalents

n Taks Mate A0 June 2019 A0 June 2078
Cash in hanrd 4,249,258 4,338,770
Callection i hand 118,215 8B5 157,098 527
Cash at bank 16.2(a) 17, 188 574 100,666 269
298 654 227 262,105,288
Consolidated cash at bank
in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Standard Charlered Bank 24 536,534 18,835,170
Thi Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 9,731,841 12,040,545
AB Bank Limiled 58,125,349 22,58%873
Agdani Bank Limided 1,158,203 2,762,882
Janata Bank Limited 4,730,300 4,944 061
Sonali Bank Limited 5,043,841 4,679 6543
Bank Asia Limited 1,640 2,780
ERAC Bank Limited 38,140,423 14,500,258
OME Bank Limited 3,061,881 o4 405,428
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLS 42107 5352 Dad
The Cily Bank Limited 20,000 .
Prirme Bank 22,916,013 -
Pukali Bank Limited 157,013 238
Dulch Bangla Bank Limited 2523320 (540,951)
176,108 574 100,668 589
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In Taka 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Praofil after 1ax 130,358,122 117,281,586
Adjusiment for .

- Depreciation and amortization 58,338.124 63,620,326
- Bad dakds and inveniory lossi{recovery) 35,467,184 (28,221.910)
= et finance cost 225,072,448 171,540,848
- Tax gxpense 53,908 065 48 987 336
- Confribution to WPPF 8 553,187 8,594 TeO
Changes in

- Intaries [15.317.404) (243 ,580.980)

- Trade and other recaivables

{403 954 526

(14 186 113)

- Advances, deposil and prepayments 8,764,702 24,098,048
- Trade and other pavables, employment bensfils' 39,931,055 13,903,149
Cash generating from operating aclivitios 152,120,857 162,037,051

Faid to WEPF (8,524, THO) [18,775.022)
Interest paid (254 78G5,221)  (160,796,004)
Incame tax paid (167 013.752) (120,205,040}

MNet cash from operating activities

(258,173,676)

(137,739,013}

Share capital
in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Ordinary shares (6,600,000 shares of Tk 10 2ach) &6,000,000 GG, 000,000
Bonus shares (32,500,000 shares of Tk, 10 each) 325,000,000 325,000,000
Right shares (5,200,000 shases of Tk 10 each) 59,000,000 59,000.000
In issue at reporting date - fully pald A50,000,000 450,000,000
Authorised - par value Tk, 10 500,000,000 500,000,000
Shareholding position
Mumber of shares Percentage of holding Value (Taka)
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 A0 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Directors and sponsors 20,708,205 29,708,205 G&.025%, B5.02% 2097 082050 297,082 050
Insfituticns 12,256,911 10,891 EDa 27.24% 24, 20% 122.3569.110 108 818,080
General sharehalders 3,034,864 4 399,987 B.74% B.T8% 30,348.840 43,288 870
45,000,000 45,000,000 100,00% 100.00%: 450,000,000 450,000,000
Share owning schedule
Hurnber of shareholders Mumber of shares Percentage of halding
Sharehalder's range 30 June 2078 30 June 2078 a0 June 2012 30 June 2018 30 June 2015 a0 June 2018
Less than &S00 2454 2,334 404, 554 380,450 0.890% 0.85%
501 1o 5000 shares G52 1,006 1432732 1.623,378 A17% I61%
007 1 10,000 shares 85 B 452,351 582,814 1.01% 1.30%
10,007 10 20,000 shares 20 40 440,263 577,544 0.98% 1.28%
20,001 1o 32,000 shares 15 24 37242 612,438 0.83% 1.36%
30,007 10 40,000 shares ] 11 275,801 396,831 0.61% 0.89%
40,001 10 50,000 shares ] 11 407,574 511,205 0.91% 1.14%
50.001 10 100,000 shares 12 13 B94.418 1,055,218 1.99% 2.34%
100,001 10 1,000,000 shares 14 16 4,090,706 4 468 282 9.09% 9.93%
Ower 1,000,000 shares 4 4 36,229,264 34, THB, G398 BO 5t TP %
3,582 3,538 45,000,000 45,000,000 100.00% 100 00%
Employes benafits
[ Taka Nafe 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Defned benefit obligation 18.1 32,394 865 28,519,364
Other employee benefits 11,009,911 8,663,911
43,484 776 39170275

Defined benefit obligation

I Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Opening balance 28,519,364 25,100,218
Service cost 5,438,826 5,889,331
Bengfils paid {2,563,325) {1,570, 188)
Closing balance 32,304 G5 22,519,364
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In Taka Nele 30 June 2019 A Junae 2018
Opening balgnce 59 310,615 51,780,493
Deferred tax (incomelexpensa for the year 3 (10.093.093) 7721122
Closing balance 49,417 522 59510615
Taxablo!
Carrying {deductible)
amaount on lemporany
In Taka reparting date Tax basa difference
AL 30 June 2015
Land 1,518,172 421 - 1,516,172,.421
Praperty, piant and eguipment (ofher than and} 428,071 987 222 393,033 205,678,854
Allowance for slow-moving mveniony 14,637 748 - (14,837,745}
Afowance for doubtful debts 142 916,944 (142 916 244}
Defined benalil abligation s 32,394 865 - [32.394 865}
Taxable!/(Deductible) temporary differences 2,134,193, 965 272,393,033 1,531.001,817
Applicable tax rate for land 3%
Applicatde tax rate far gther than land 25%
Deferred tax liabilities 48,417 522
At 30 June 2018
Land 1,220,995 768 - 1,320,995, 766
Property, plant and equipmont (cther than land) 447 322717 214,688,555 32,835,162
Allowance for show-moving imventory 12,520,829 - {12,520, 529)
Abowance far doubtful debts 111,063,858 {111,083 889)
Ceefined benefit obligation — 20.518,364 - {28,519,354)
Taxable!/(Doductible) temporary differences 1,921.431,675 214 6BB 565  1.400,518,736
Applicable tax rate for land 3%
Apolicable fax rate far other than land 25.00%
Deferred tax llabilities 58,510,615
Bank overdrafts
n Taka Nate 30 June 2018 30 June 20498
Standard Charered Bank 201 9,910,418 43,607,230
The Hangkang and Shanghal Banking Carparation Limited (HSBC) 201 {2,462 871) {1,394,870)
Prime Bank Limited 201 87,110,273 95,570,247
BRAC Bank Limiled 201 4,915 476 B.B31,767
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 201 12,285,370 16,883,127
128,758 666 163,487 501

Terms and repayment schedule

The terms and condibons of outstanding overdrall are as follows

30 June 2049

30 June 2018

Year of Loan Loan Laan Loan

i Taka Currency miluriby Jimil outstanding firmit oulstandin
Standard Charlered Bank BaoT 2019 10,000,000 8,810,418 10,000,000 43,607 230
HSBG BoT 2018 10,000,000 12,462,871) 10,000,000 {1,394 870)
Prime Bank Limiled BOT 2019 100,000,000 97,110,273 100,0:00,000 95570247
BRAC Bank Limited BoT 2018 10,000,000 4,915,476 10,000,000 883, Te7
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC BOT 2018 20,000.000 19,285,370 20,000,000 16,883 127

150,000,000 128,758 656 150,000,000 163,487 504

The Company is enjoying ovardraft faciities from the banks for the purpose of meeting waorking capital requiremenits which is 1o be repaid to the

banks an demand

Loans and borrowlngs

In Taka MNode 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Slandard Chartered Bank 211 1,584 038 2
The Hongkeng and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 211 3251722 65,162,809
BRAC Bank Limited 211 456 B14,410 471900 577
The City Bank Limited 211 350,000,000 578,940,357
Prime Bank Limiteg 211 352 317 BED B43,582 669
Commercial Bank of Ceylan PLC 21.1 508,733 261 TBS.100,408
1,822 161,341 2738695 6148
Consolidated Loans and borrowings
in Taka Note 30 June 201% 30 Juns 2018
Standard Chartzred Bank 211 1,584,088 .
The Hongkang and Shanghai Banking Corparation Limited (HSBC) 211 32,511,722 93,162,809
BRAC Bank Limmted 211 466 614,410 471,908,577
The City Bank Limited 211 350,000,000 578,940,357
Primg Bank Limited 211 352,317, BG0 B43.582 669
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 211 608,733,261 TB9, 100,408
Duteh Bangla Bank Limited 2,880,158 7.682 B74
1,825021,49% 2746 376 692
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214 Terms and repayment schedule
The terms and conditiens of combined oulstanding bans are as follows,
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Year of Lean Lean Loan Loan
in Taka Hote Currency maiurity lirmit oulstanding lirmig oulstanding
Siandard Chartered Bank 211 EOT 2019 510,000,000 1,984,088 510.000,000 -
HIBC 21.1.2 BEOT 2015 300,000,000 32511722 420,000,000 65,162,809
BRAC Bank Limited 21.1.3 BOT 2018 750,000,000 438,614,410 750,000,000 471,908,577
The Cily Bank Limiled 21.1.4 BOT 2013 BO00,000.000 330,000,000 800,000,000 578,040 357
Frima Bank Lirmiled 21.1.5 BOT 209 B0, 000,000 362,317 850 800,000,000 E43,582 GBD
{F’:fg‘mm'a' BankofCeylon o 4 BOT 20149 800,000,000  GO8733261  BOOCOD.000  TOS,100.405
3,860,000.000 1,822 161,341 4,080,000.000 2.73I8E05818
2111 Standard Chartered Bank
The Company is enjoying trade finance facility under general banking faciliies from Slandard Chanered Bank (SCB} under the following 18rms
and conditions agalnst Ine lacility offer letier daled 18 June 2017 and subsequent updales,
21.1.1.1 Letter of Credit (L/C secured)/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)
Amaunt: Tk 510,000,000
Purpose: Ta retire the documents wnder lers of credil issued by 1ne Standard Charlered Bank
Tenura 360 days
Payment: Cn maturity. each trust receipi cutsianding will be adjusied by debiting Company's bank account and quartarly
’ intaresl will B charged into the same account.
21.1.1.2 Acceptance
Arnount: Tk 510,000.000 {lnnes lmit of 21.1.1.1}
o To provide acceptance aoainst usance ar deferrediusance LG issued. Acceptance can ba utilised for machinery
UTpOsE
LiC as wall
Temure 380 days
21.1.1.3 Shipping Guarantees
Amounl: Th 200,000,000 (Inner limitof 21.1.1.%)
Purposa. To ralease of imporled goods.
Tenure, 30 days
21.1.1.4 Impon loan
Amount; Tr 50,000,000 (nner imitof 21.1.1.1)
Purpose For release of impored goods.
Tenure; 1B0 days
21.1.1.6 Short term loan
Amaunt TH 250,000,000 {Innar limat of 21.1.1.1)
Purpose For the purpose of working capital
Tenure 90 days
Payment On maturity of such loan,
21.1.1.6 Bond & Guarantees
Amauni Th 20000000 {nner limid of 21.1.1.1)
Purpose Izsuance of guarantees on benall of the company
Tenure: 365 days

24447

21.1.2

21.1.21

Securities against the facilities
Secunties against the faclities menboned under notes 20 and 21.1.1 are as lollows:

- Demand promissary note and letter of contineation for TK 520,000,000 each

- Regizglered hypothecation over slock and book debls of the Company on pari-pasu basis for Tk 540,000,000,

- Farel charge by way of regislared morgage aver the fangibla fixad assels of the Company bath existing and future where Standard Charterad
Bank's share being at least Tk 140 000,000,

- Corperale guarantee from Advanced Chamical Indusines Limited supporied by board resalution.

The Hongkeng and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)

The Company s anpaying lellowing facihibes from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) under the following terms
and conditions against the facility offer latler dated 21 January 2019 and subsequeni updatos,

Combined limit! import line/ Import cash limit

Amount Tk 300,000,000
Te refire sighl cocuments by creating import loan and usance documents against borowers acceptance and
Purpase: issue shipping guaraniee, Te finance imported raw malerials/sparesismall machinery on sight and deferred
basis
Tenurs: 180 days for imports (loan) and deferred payment bills and 30 days for shippeng guarantes.

Payrment: Cn matunty of such koan
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21.1.2.2 Guaranice

Amount Tk 5,000,000

Purpose To Issues gu;traniees Tawouring wvarous Government Bedies and ulilily companies etc. reguired in fhe normal
course of business

Tenure Opan ended

21,1.2.3 Securities against the facllitles
Securities agamst the facifites mentioned under noles 20 and 21 1.2 are a5 follows:

- Demand promissory note of Tk 587 549,000 wilh letier of revival and continuity

- Letter of Set OFf between different accounts maintained with the bank.

- Corporate quaranies 1o be execuled by Advancad Chemical Industries Limited for Tk 510,000,000 supported by Board Resofution

= Furst pari-pasu change wilh other lenders over the bormawess stock of raw malerials, work-in-progress and finished goods for Tk.420,000,000
registerad with the Registrar af Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC)

- First pari-pasu charge with cther lendars over the borrower's book debtsfreceivabias for Tk, 430,000,000 registered waih the Registrar of Jaint
Stock Companies (RJSC) on pari-pasu basis with Standard Charlered Bank, where HSBC's share is 430,000,000,

21,13 BRAC Bank Limited

The Company is enjoying follewing facilibes from BRAC Bank Limided under the following terms and conditions against the facility offer letter
dated 30 September 2018

21.1.3.1 Letters of Credit f Revolving Acceptance/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Armgunl Tk 500,000,000

Purpose: To relire import documents for raw malesqals.
Tenure: 120 - 180 days

Paymens: ©n maturity of such loan

21.1.3.2 Bank guaranice

Amount: Tk 30,000,000 (anes broit of 21.1.3.1)
Purpose: To meet varous contractual eoligalian,
Tenure: 15 Years

21.1.3.3 Revolving loan

Ameunt: Tk 250,000,000

Purpose: Tomake payment of customs duly and VAT and mesal workiing capital requirerments.
Tenure: 150 days

Paymenl On malurity of such loan.

21.1.3.4 Securities against the facilities
Securibes againsl the faciklies mentioned under notes 20 ard 21.1.3 are s follows

- Registared first charge aver stock and book debts of the Company for Tk 760,000,000,
- Corporate guaranies from Advanced Chemical Ingustries Limited.

21.1.4 The City Bank Limited

The Company is enjoying following facilies fram The City Bank Linvled unders Ine follawing berms and condiions againet the facility offer letier
dated 02 Apal 2019,

21,141 Letters of Credit ! Revolving AcceptancelLoan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)/Short Term Loan

Amoun Tk 50,000,000
Purpcse To retire sight LT, deflerred LIC, impad of raw malerials and finishad goods.
Tenar o0 - 360 days

21,1.4.2 Letters of Credit - Local

Amaunt Tk 300,000,000 (Aner Fmit of 21.1.4.1)
Purpose: To prosure ranw malerial and finished goods from lozal source,
Tenar a0 days from dala of each disbursement

21.1.4.3 Securitles against the facilities
Securities against the facilities menboned under noles and are as follows:

- 15t ranking PPS5A an all finating assats including stock, boak debis of ACI Farmulations Limited for BOT 200,000,000
- Corporale guarantee from Advanced Chemical Indusinss Limited

21.1,5 Prime Bank Limited

Tre Company is enjaying following facitibes from Prime Bank Limited urder the following terms and condilions against the facitly offer letier
dated 5 March 2018

21.1.5.1 Letters of credit (LC) ! Loan against trust receipt (LTR):

Amount; Tk 200,000,000
For payment of imporied raw matenals / chemicals f accessories | capital machinery ¢ spare paris and others
Purpose: {import of capital machinery shall not excead Th 80,000,000). Also for retirement of L documents ar payment
of accepted kills,
Tenyre: 180 - 255 days

Payment On maturity of such loan,
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21.1.5.2 Time loan / Short term loan

Armncaant: Tk 500,000,000 {Inner limit of 21.1.5.1)

Purpoze Tao precurte raw matenals f chemicals | accessones and others from local sources.
Tenure 180 days

Payrnen On roalurity of such loan

21.1.5.3 Bank guarantee

Amaunt: Tk 40,000,000 {Inner limd of 21.1.5.1)
Purpose; To provide guarantee in faves of different acthonty as required by the Company.
Tenura Open ended

21.1.5.4 Securltles agalnst the facllities
Securilies against the facilities mentioned under notes and 20.1.5 are as fallows:

- &vailable charge on floating assels wilh Ragistrar of Joinl Stock Companies (RJSC) and Firms along with MIGPA,
- Cross Corporale guarantee among Advance Chemicals Industries Limited, ACI Formulations Limited, ACI Sail Lid, ACI Pure Flowr Lid,
Premiaflax Plastics Lid., & ACI Mators Lid

21.1.6  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

The Company is enjoying Tollowing facitities from Commercial Bank af Ceyion PLC under the fellowing terms and conditions against the facility
offer letler dated 5 Sepiember 2017 and subsequant updalas.

21161 Letters of Credit [ Loan Agalnst Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount Tk 700,000,000

Furpose; To retire import documeants for raw malenals, packing materals, inished gocds and spare pars
Tenor: 180 days

Payment: On matueily of such loan

21.1.6.2 Short term loan

Amount Tk 100.000,000

Purposa Fer granting payment ol procurement of local raw matenals and payment for duty and tax of imporled raw
materials,

Tenure 180 days

Payment: On maturity of such loan.

21.1.6.3 Securities against the facilities

Securities for the facilibes mentioned under nodes 20 and 21.1.6 are as follows:
- Registerad first hypethecation charge aver stocks and book debts on par-pasu basis with ciher lenders, CBC's share being Tk 820,000, 000

22 Trade payables

It Taka 30 June 2019 a0 June 2018
Related parly-Premiatiex Plastics Limied 4,135,083 10,818,922
Otner Inan retated parties B4.915.08%91 118,177.034

85,050,954 126,589,956

22(a} Consolidated trade payables

i Taka 30 Jura 2010 A0 Junie 2018
Related party-Premialiex Plastics Liniled 4,135,063 10,618,922
Other than related panties 3, 28% 407 121,613,742

97,424,470 132,432 654

23 Other payables

In Taka Note 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Credibors for Bxpenses 231 193,888,612 116,944 466
Interest payable 16,286,914 45,834,424
Security money payable 11,765,968 11,048,410
Unpaid dividend 11,810,167 10,960,089
Withhelding 1ax and WAT 4,706,251 3,200,484
Pravision for workers' profit participation fund 9,553,187 8,504 780

228013,100 196,563,583

231 This includes accrued selfing, manufacturing and other accrueed expensss

23ja}  Consolidated other payables

in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2078
Crediors for expenses 195,338,738 147,767 558
Interest payable 16,288,914 45 834,424
Security money payable 11,765,968 11,048,410
Unpaid dwidand 11,810,167 10,960,062
Withholding tax and VAT 4 BET.0E 3,382,687
Pravision for warkers® prafit participalion fund 9,5553.187 8,584 780

249,643 954 197, SE8,908
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Inter-company payables
In Taka 30 Juns 2019 a0 Jun= 2018

ACI Limited 1,146 257 405 "

1,146,287 405

This anses due 1o commen cost shanng and warking capital financing with AC) Limied
Provision for tax
In Taka a0 June 2019 A0 June 2018
Opening balance 268,942,936 228,388,660
Provision made during 1ha year 63.140.603 40,544, 336
Closing balance 332002 799 268,942,008
Consclidated provision for tax
In Taka 30 June 2019 30 Jure 2018
Opeming balance 270,340,004 228 877 450
Fravision made during ihe yegar 63,312,309 d1 G652 554
Clnsin_g balance 333652313 270,340,004
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Revenue
Far the year ended  For the year ended
In Taka Note 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Agrochemical praducts 26.1 2,762 064 532 2,443 423,693
Consumer products 26.2 1,263,221,358 1,684,042 265
4,025,285,880 4,127 465,858

In view of innumerable items of sales and diversified quantities, it is not practicable 1o disclose the quantities

against each items of sale.

Agrochemical products

Far the year ended  For the year ended

In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Lacal 2,735.550,275 2422 736,208

Export 22 514 257 20,687 487
2,762 054 532 2443 423 693

Consumer products

Far the year ended  For the year ended

Jn Taka Note 30 June 2018 30 Jure 2018
Caail 2621 134,212,762 493,339 066
Agrosol 2621 531,931,582 740,044,144
Wanish 2621 45,829,793 62,374 441
Faint 550.247 221 388,284,614
1,263,221,358 1,684,042 265

On 24 April 2015 ACI Limited entered intc agreemants with S, C. Johnson & Son, Inc. (a corporation
incorparated under the laws of the state of Wisconsin, USA) whereby 5. C. Jehnson & Son, Inc. has
purchased the brands of these products en mutually beneficial terms. As per contract, ACI Formulations
Limited produces these preducts for 5.C. Johnsan & Son, Inc., which are marketed by ACI Limited through
its own channel, ACI Formulations Limited will continue to be the manufacturer of these products for a perlod

of 5 years fram 24 April 2015,

Consolidated revenue

Far the year ended  Faor the year ended

In Taka Mote 30 June 20158 30 June 2018

Agrochemical products 26.1{(a) 2,762 064 532 2443 423 693

Consumer praducts 26.2(a) 1,280,305 679 1, 709,845,820
4052370211 4,153,270,513

Agrochemical products

Far the year ended  For the year ended

In Taka 30 June 2018 A0 June 2018

Laocal 2,730 550,275 2422 736,206

Expornt 22 514 257 20 687 487
2,762,084 532 2443 423 6893

Consumer products

For the year ended  For the year ended

In Taka 30 June 2013 30 June 2018

Coil 134,212 762 493,335 066
Aerosol 531,931,582 740 044 144
“Vanish 45 829,793 62,374,441
Paint 650,247 221 388,284 614
Herbal cosmetics 27.084 321 25,804,555

1,290,305 679 1,708,846,820
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Other income
For the year ended  For the year anded
in Taka 20 June 2018 A0 Juna 2018
Crop Care & Public Health 3076674 5,309,477
Aarosal 340 205 < 261,860
Paini 1,682,178 933,335
5,109, 755 6,594,472
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses
Far the yaar anded
For the year ended 30 Juns 2018 20 .lur: 2018
Manufaclunng  Adminstrative Distrbulion Selling Total Tatal
In Taka BRPANSES aEpanses BXDENESS EXOENSES
Salary and wages 128,507,520 126,047 B53 38,526 412 212,043 441 505,425,026 491 050,353
Traveling and conveyance 203.074 3,464,200 22,030,243 73,022,047 96,739 664 108,098 414
Rent and rates 588,195 TO2 47T 15,428,640 18,247 198 35,057 508 30,179,347
Repair and mainienanca 16,501 246 5675 551 1,080,282 328,014 F3BS5073 31,627,566
Fuel and power 2343217 2,966,182 1,675,706 108,342 28,382 447 35,059,669
Postage, tefephone and fax 541378 133,841 - T.130,245 7.805, 264 10,916, 744
Printing and stationery G489 164 1128912 4,800 252 872,002 7.559,330 T225.891
Promotional expanses - = - 126,465,615 126 465,615 124,700, 283
Emertamment 1,528 141 AT 1,677,680 5626421 12,544,453 8,830,037
Wihicle maintenance B9 681 1615018 5,370,755 8,430,173 7,218,657 24,173,108
Doubliul debts £ - E 32,776,937 A2, 776,937 [27,378,105])
Truck and handling - . 10,708,048 . 10,705,048 18,348, 241
Legal and professional charge 2767 1 36,304,357 39,071,451 10,083,079
Audit fees . B30,000 - 530,000 530,000
Insurance 4,896 398 L] S05,002 5,802 350 4442072
Dhrectors' faes . 4,750 - - 8,750 11,250
Bank charges - 2 BEZ 489 1,065,587 3,748,176 3,152,156
Sundry expenses 2243567 - . 224 357 206,868
Product develocoment expenses 26,547 1,243 977 1,275,924 B4, 454
Training expenses 14.838 = 842,339 857,177 1,612,527
Depraciation 50,480,328 2,483 100 24 086 14,845 510 G843 104 632,008,544
Lab chemical ang apparalus 541 046 . 541,045 391,755
Mzeling expenses - - 2 546,591 2,548,591 4,908,802
229,235.530 154,122 348 102,913,004 542 918,955 1,029, 185, 0968 B57,332,950
Recovery of axpenses for tof
manufacturing sarvice charges 111,036.045) - - . (11.038,045) (7,445, 650)
216,199 483 154,122 348 102,513,094 542 918 955 1.018,153,823 B4 63T, 300
(A] Manulaciuring expenses 218195 485 259,710,027
(8] Adrminisirative, selling and distribufion expenses 790 954 435 B80,177,273
1.018,153,923 949,687,300

Caonsolidated administrative, selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended

For the year anded

In Teka A0 June 2018 A0 Juna 2018
Administralive expenscs 155,520,811 128,122,548
Distnbution expenses 102,913,054 06,212,226
Seling expenses 542 918,9%5 466,965 347
801,352 931 E81,303,121
Finance costs, nat
For the year ended  Far the year ended
Int Taka 30 June 2018 30 Jura 20156
Interest expenses
Bank lean 142 544,969 182 963,319
Inter-company A9 509,934 4,635,410
232,054 003 187,796,729
Interest income
Bank 3,160,659 24,502
Inler-company 4,133,373 16,723 482
7,254,032 16,778,384
204,760,871 171,020,345
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32.1{a) Consolidated basic earnings per sharg

Consaolidated finance costs, nel

Hoda Vasi

Chowdhury & Co

For the year ended

For the year ended

iri Take 30 June 2019 20 June 2018
Interest expenses y
Bank loan 142 B56 545 183,483,823
Inler-campany BS,500 934 4835410
232 365,478 186,319,233
Interest income
Bank 3,160,659 54,202
Inter-company 4,133.373 16,723,482
T.254.032 16,778,384
225072447 171,540,845

Income ax expense

Far the year ended

For the year endad

in Taks 30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Current tax expense

Charged during the year 25 £3,148.203 40,544 336
63,140 803 40 544,336

Deferred tax expensel(income}

Change in deferred tax liabilities 18 (10,093,093} 7.721,122
(10,0%3.083) 7.721.122

Tax expensel(income) 53,056,710 40,765 458

Consolidated income tax expanse

Far the year ended

For ihe year endad

in Taks 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Current tlax expanse

Charged dunng the year 53,312,309 41,662 554

63,312,309 41,662 554

Deferred tax expensel(income}

Change in daferred tax assels (9, 406.241) 7,324,782
2 (9,406,241} 7.324.7682

Tax expensel(income) 52,905 068 48,987 336

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profil atlibutable o ardinary sharshalders and weighted average number of ardinary

sharas oulstanding is a3 follows

i1 TakaMumber

For the year ended
30 Juna 2018

Fee the year endad
30 June 2018

Profitf{loss) atiributable o he owners of the Company { Taka ) 128,453,851 115,034 985
Weighted average numoer of crdinary shares {number) 45,000,000 45,000,000
Earning per share (Taka) 2.85 256

The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit atinbuizble 1o ardinary shareholders and wesghled average number of ordinary

shares aulstanding is as follows,

In TakaMNumber

For the year ended

For the year ended

S0 Juna 2019 30 June 2018
Profifloss) atinbulable to the owners of the Group {Teka ) 130,321,018 117,236 654
Werghled average number of ordinary shares (number) 45,000,000 45, 000000
Earning per share [Taka) 220 2.61

Diluted earnings per share

No diluled EPS was required to be calculated for Ine year ended 30 June 2019 since there was no scope for dilulien of shares.
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Financial risk management

The Group has exposure lo the following risks arising from financial instruments:
e Credit risk {see 33 (ii));
e Liquidity risk (see 33{iii)); and
e Market risk (ses 23(iv)).

Risk management framework

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk management framework. The Group's risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
manitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive contral environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Company's exposure to credit risk primarily
relates to trade receivables and balance with banks including short and long term deposits.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
custamer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate,

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of financial asset in the
staternent of financial position.

{(a} Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to cradit risk at the reporting date was;

Carrying amount

In Taka MNofe 30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Trade receivables 12(a) 1,861,263 656 1471631279
Other receivables 13 41,673,512 26,004 265
Inter-company receivables 14(a) 3,658,384 490,417,631
Deposits 15(a) 29797 266 28,583,993
Bank balances 16(a) 176,188,974 100,666,989

2.112,581,792 2,117,304,157

At reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by
geographic regions was as follows:

Carrying amount

in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh 1,863,557 107 1472,548,104
India 39,380,081 25,087.440

1,802,937 168 1,497,635,544
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{b) Ageing of trade receivables

The aging of trade receivables at reporting date was as follows:

Carrying amount

In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Meither past due nor impaired 1,126,256 614 885,082,002
Past due 1 - 30 days 271,802,5T1 217,866,451
Past due 91 - 120 days 134 653,453 92 354 328
Past due 121 - 180 days 28,138,610 20,846,672
Past due 181 - 365 days 69,338,906 55,502,112
Past due 366 - 730 days 38 583 637 53,733.018
Past due 731 plus days 122 4849 B65 116,146,696

1,861,263,656 1471,631,278

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still
callectable in full, based on historical payment behavicur and extensive analysis of the customer
credit risk, including underlying customers' credit rating if they are applicable.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of receivables during the year was as
follows:

I Taka Nole 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Opening balance 12(a} 111,063,899 136,871,225
Impairment loss recognised 32,776,937 16,006,533
Amounts written offf write in (923,892) (41,913,859)

Closing balance 142,916,944 111,083,859
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{iv} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments: The
abjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

a) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the
currencies in which purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the
Company, The functional currency of the Company is Bangladesh Taka (Taka/TK/BODT). The foreign
currency in which these transactions are denominated is US Dollar (USD).

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as at balance sheet
date was as follows,

in USO 30 June 2019 30 June 20148
Cash at bank 241,198 204,641
Loans and borrowings (3,851,956) (10,547.917)

(3,610,758) (10,34 3.276)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year:

30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Year-end Year-end
In Taka Average rate spot rate Average rate spot rate
uso 84.13 84.50 82,53 8375

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign currency against functional currency at 30
June would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign
currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignore any impact of forecast
sales and purchase.

Equity, net of tax

Profiti{loss) increase/{decreasea)
Effect in Taka Strengthening  Weakening Strengthening Weakening
20 June 2019
USD (5% movement) 15,187,749.41 {15,187,749) 15,187,748 (15,187,749
30 June 2018

LUSD (5% movement) 42,678,944 (42,678,944} 42 678,944 {42,678,944)
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b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. The Company
has not entered into any type of dervative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the
reporting date.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as at balance sheet
date is as follows,

Mominal Amount

Tn Taka Note 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assels

Investment in FOR 9{a) 35719438 33,072.743
Financial fiabilities

Bank gverdrafts 20 (128,756,666) (163,497 501)
Loans and borrowings 21(a) (1,499,531,220)  (1,862,990,643)

(1,592,570,448) (1,993,415,401)

Variable rate instruments
Financial assels

Laans to Advance Chemical Industries Limited 3,658,384 486 991,754
Financial lfabilities

Offshore loan {325.490,279) {883,386,049)
Loans from Advance Chemical Industries Limited (1,146,287 405)

(1,488, 119,300) (396,386,295)
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Commitments and contingencies

Commitments
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Cn the statement of financial position date, the Company is enjoying unfunded credit facilities from the

following banks:

In Taka

30 June 2018

30 June 2018

a) Revenue expenditure {Letters of credit)

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 155,416,161 100,797,229
The City Bank Limited 847 312 14,428,976
BRAC Bank Limited 35,288 690 374,229,873
Prime Bank Limited - 4 419 B74
191,552,163 483,875,952
b} Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted for 18 468 390 145,404,227
18,488,390 145,404,227
Contingent liabilities
In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bank guarantee
HSBC 1,581,679 1.581.679
Pubali Bank Limited 20,300,000 -
BRAC Bank 24 562 358 37,544,393
46 444 037 39126,072
Performance guarantee
Standard Chartered Bank 15 585 398 15,685,397
15,585 398 15,585,397
62,029 435 24,711,469

Production capacity

The production status (business wise) for the year ended 30 June 2019 are as fallaws;

Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation
Crop Care and Public Health 25,800 M Tan 10,805 42 27
Mosquite Coil 1,098,000 Cartan 128,237 11.68
Aerosol 11,400,000 Can 56832 517 49.41
Vanish 12,000,000 Can 1,181 404 9,93
Paint 3,000 M Ton 1,696 56,55

The preduction status (business wise) for the year endad 30 June 2018 were as follows:

Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation
Crop Care and Public Health 25,800 M Ton 13,852 52.01
Masquito Coil 1,088,000 Cartan 406,268 37.00
Aerosaol 11,400,000 Can 8,166,362 80.41
Vanish 12,000,000 Can 1.849 570 15,41
Paint 3,000 M Ton 1,247 41.57
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Other disclosures
Number of employees

At 30 June 2018, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk, 36,000 or above per annum
was 1,361 (30 June 2018 1,785,

Comparatives

Previous year's figures have been rearranged, whenever considered necessary to conform to the current
year's presentation.

More specifically, during the year amongst others effect of foreign exchange rate changes amounting to Tk,
168,263, has been presented under opening cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of cash flaws in
the financial statements of the Company. In the comparative this figure was presented an net-off basis with
the interest paid figure in the operating activities section of the Statement of cash flows. Due to
rearrangement of effect of foreign exchange rate changes, comparatives of the Company has been
changed and consequently, comparatives of the consolidated financial statements of ACI Formulations
Limited has been rearranged with the corresponding impact on the value of consalidated interest paid and
effect of foreign exchange rate changes, as well as the amount of net cash (used in)/from aparating
activities and net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. The rearrangement in the comparative
reconciliation of net operating cash flow of the Company (Mote - 16.3) and the Goup (Note - 16.3(a)) has
also been met. Thus, the net operating cash flows per share reported in the comparative has changed at
both the Comapny and the Group level from Tk. (2.73) and Tk. (3.05) respectively to Tk. (2.74) and Tk.
(3.08). Note that this rearrangement does not have any impact on the comparative closing cash and cash
equivalents reported by the Company and the Graup on 30 June 2018

Subsequent events

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 24 October 2019 have recommended cash dividend at 35%
per share of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 157,500,000 for the year ended 30 June 2019 subject to
approval of the shareholders' in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 23 December 2019,
The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 do not include the effect of the cash dividend
which will be accounted for in the period when sharehalders’ right to receive payment is established.

There are no other events identified after the date of the statement of financial position which require
adjustment or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements.

Mame of auditors of the group companies

Name of the company Status of the company MName of auditors

Meem Laboratories (Pvt.) Lid Subsidiary Shiraz Khan Basak & Co




